














 

The Hon Greg Hunt MP  
Minister for Health 

Minister Assisting the Prime Minister for the  

Public Service and Cabinet 

Parliament House Canberra  ACT  2600  Telephone: (02) 6277 7220 

 
Ref No: MC20-008280 

 
24 April 2020 

 
Senator the Hon Concetta Fierravanti-Wells  
Chair  
Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation  
Parliament House 
PO Box 6100 
CANBERRA  ACT  2600 
 
 
Dear Senator  
 
I refer to your letter of 3 April 2020 from the Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of 
Delegated Legislation requesting additional information concerning section 25 of the 
National Health (Take Home Naloxone Pilot) Special Arrangement 2019 (PB 97 of 2019) 
(Arrangement). 
 
You have asked my Department to provide advice as to what evidence is available beyond 
the terms of section 100 of the National Health Act 1953 (Act) to indicate that Parliament 
intended section 100 to provide legislative authority for the authorisation of private third 
parties to perform all of the powers and functions of the Secretary in administering special 
arrangements.  
 
The Explanatory Memorandum for the originating bill, the Health and Ageing Legislation 
Amendment Bill relevantly provides: 

Section 100 of the National Health Act 1953 provides an important mechanism to 
enable special distribution arrangements for pharmaceutical benefits where, in 
particular circumstances, the normal PBS supply arrangements are not convenient or 
efficient… 

These amendments will make it clear that these special arrangements can be used 
for the funding of particular medicines that are not available through the normal 
operation of the PBS. 

This demonstrates that at the time that section 100 of the Act was enacted, Parliament 
clearly intended that section 100 of the Act would provide for funding of medicines outside 
the normal operation of the PBS including, where it is necessary or convenient to do so, 
arrangements such as those provided for under this Arrangement. 
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As it is particularly relevant, I also draw your attention to ADCO Constructions Pty Ltd v 
Goudappel [2014] HCA 18 (16 May 2014), where the High Court of Australia indicated that 
Henry VIII clauses (such as that at section 100(1) of the Act) need not be construed strictly.  
The joint judgment of French CJ, Crennan, Kiefel JJ at [31] and Gageler J at [61] concluded 
that such provisions strike ‘a legislated balance between flexibility and accountability in 
working out of the detail of replacing one modern complex statutory scheme with another’. 
 
Consequently, it is clear that section 100 of the Act provides authority for the Secretary to 
authorise, qualified persons to perform any of the Secretary’s functions, or exercise any of 
the Secretary’s powers as are required for the purposes of the supply of pharmaceutical 
benefits as part of the Take Home Naloxone Pilot under section 25 of the Arrangement.   
 
I trust this information is of assistance in clarifying your concerns.  
 
Thank you for writing on this matter. 
 
Yours sincerely  

Greg Hunt 
 
  




